
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 
1402 N. VOSBURG DR. AZUSA, CA 91702 

950 NEW YORK AVE NW, WASHINGTON, DC 20001 US 
MONDAY, JUNE 09, 2025 
8:00 AM – 10:00 AM (PDT) 

  
This meeting will be held in person at the District office, located at 1402 North Vosburg Drive, Azusa, 
California. While the Boardroom is open for public attendance, you are strongly encouraged to 
participate in the meeting virtually through the remote Zoom link provided below. If you attend the 
Board meeting in person, please maintain appropriate social distancing to the extent feasible (i.e., 
maintain a six-foot distance between yourself and other individuals). Face coverings are encouraged 
but not required for attendees.  Lastly, if you are experiencing any COVID-19 symptoms, including 
fever or chills, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, fatigue, muscle or body aches, 
headache, new loss of taste or smell, sore throat, congestion or runny nose, nausea or vomiting or 
diarrhea, please do not attend the meeting in person. 
  
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89013306120?pwd=SUZJRzFFSDRXUVVTY0NhOXQ0c1l6QT09 

Meeting ID: 890 1330 6120 
Passcode: 512838 
Dial by your location 
+1 669 444 9171 US 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL:  Eng, Knoles, Paulson, Placido, Prince 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
UPDATES FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: The following matters are expected to be routine and will be acted upon by 
a single motion with little discussion unless any Director or citizen requests a separate action: 
 
 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of May 12, 2025  

Financial Statements for May 2025 
Disbursements of the Revolving Fund Dated May 15, 2025, Check Nos. 12695 – 12700, EFTs 
and Wires 
Disbursements of the Revolving Fund Dated May 29, 2025, Check Nos. 12701 – 12704,   
EFT, and Wires 
Disbursements of the Revolving Fund Dated June 09, 2025, Check Nos. 12705 - 12709, and 
Wires 
Disbursements of the General Fund Dated May 13 - 31, 2025, Check Nos. 45220 - 45240, and 
EFTs  

           Disbursements of the General Fund Dated June 01 - 09, 2025, Check Nos. 45241 – 45278, 
and EFTs 
Disbursements of the State Water Project (SWP) Dated: May 27, 2025, Check No. 1017, in 
the amount of $537,168.00 
Visa Recap 
Future Meeting Attendance Approval: None 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89013306120?pwd=SUZJRzFFSDRXUVVTY0NhOXQ0c1l6QT09


ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Report on Vacant Job Positions - AB 2561 
 

2. Resolution No. 06-2025-846 - Amending Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Code to Add 
General Manager Emeritus Position 

 
3. Resolution No. 06-2025-847 - Salary Schedule 

    
4. Resolution No. 06-2025-848 - 2025-2026 Budget and Capital Expenditures 

 
5. Civiltec Proposal for Standy Generators  

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
External Affairs Update 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  

1.   Report on Basin Management 
 2.   Report on WQA  

3.   Report on the Attorney  
4.   Report on General Manager/Assistant Manager 
5.   Report on State Water Contractors  

 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 

 
DIRECTOR REPORTS ON EVENTS ATTENDED 
 
DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(a)): 
  
California Sportsfishing Alliance, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources and California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, et al., Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 24WM000181; 
Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources and California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, et al., Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 24WM000183; 
San Francisco Baykeeper, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources, Sacramento County 
Superior Court Case No. 24WM000185; and Central Delta Water Agency and South Delta Water 
Agency v. California Department of Water Resources, Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 
24WM000186 (2024 Incidental Take Permit Litigation) 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
THIS AGENDA WAS POSTED ON JUNE 05, 2025, AT SGVMWD. 

THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING WILL BE ON JULY 14, 2025.  



1 
 
 

      MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL  
WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
1402 N. VOSBURG DR. AZUSA, CA 91702 

MONDAY, MAY 12, 2025 
8:00 A.M. 

 
At 8:00 a.m. on March 10, 2025, the Board of Directors meeting was held in person at the District office, 
located at 1402 North Vosburg Drive, Azusa, California. While the Boardroom was open for public 
attendance, the District strongly encouraged attendees wanting to attend the meeting to participate in 
the meeting virtually through the remote Zoom link provided below. Attendees in person were asked to 
please maintain appropriate social distancing to the extent feasible (i.e., maintain a six-foot distance 
between yourself and other individuals). Face coverings were encouraged but not required for 
attendees.  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89013306120?pwd=SUZJRzFFSDRXUVVTY0NhOXQ0c1l6QT09 

Meeting ID: 890 1330 6120 
Passcode: 512838 
Dial by your location 
+1 669 444 9171 US 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
President Placido called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
  
Directors present at Roll Call: Eng, Knoles, Paulson, Placido, Prince (arrived at 8:09 a.m.) 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  
 
Darin Kasamoto, General Manager; Steve Kiggins, Assistant General Manager; Maria “Gigi” Jarmin, 
Executive Assistant; Evelyn Reyes, External Affairs Manager; Jim Ciampa, Lagerlof LLP; Lauren 
Augino, Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster. 
 
Via telephone/Zoom: Albert Lu, SGVMWD; Steven McGee, City of Sierra Madre; Frank Heldman, City 
of Monterey Park; Melissa Barbosa, Azusa Light & Water; Latoya Waters, City of Alhambra. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
None. 
 
UPDATES FROM THE CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
 
None. 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89013306120?pwd=SUZJRzFFSDRXUVVTY0NhOXQ0c1l6QT09


2 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Financial Statements for April 2025 
Treasurer’s Investment Report Dated December 31, 2024 
Disbursements of the Revolving Fund Dated: 
April 17, 2025, Check Nos. 12682 - 12686, EFTs, and Wires in the amount of $66,897.68 
May 01, 2025, Check Nos. 12687 - 12690, EFT, and Wires in the amount of $64,375.89 
May 12, 2025, Check Nos. 12691 - 12694, and Wires in the amount of $4,151.50 
Disbursements of the General Fund Dated: 
April 15 - 30, 2025, Check Nos. 45163 – 45178, and EFTs in the amount of $250,366.28 
April 01 - 12, 2025, Check Nos. 45179 – 45219, and EFTs in the amount of $393,440.38 
Disbursements for State Water Project (SWP) expenses, dated: April 28, 2025, Check No. 1016, in the 
amount of $537,168.00 
Future Meeting Attendance Approval: None 
 
On the motion of Director Paulson, seconded by Director Knoles, and unanimously carried 5 - 0, the 
Consent Calendar was approved. 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEM 
 
COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT  
 
On the motion of Director Knoles, seconded by Director Paulson, and unanimously carried 5 – 0, The 
Cost-of-Living Adjustment for all employees at 3%, was approved.  
 
2025-2026 DRAFT BUDGET 
 
This was an information only agenda item. 
San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District’s draft 2025-2026 Budget and Capital Expenditure Plan is 
being presented to the full Board at this meeting for review before its formal presentation for adoption at 
the June Board Meeting.   
 
PERSONNEL NEEDS   
 
The new General Manager will begin work on July 1, 2025, and because of the six-month General 
Manager overlapping position, a new temporary position of “General Manager Emeritus” was created.   
 
On motion of Director Eng, seconded by Director Prince, and unanimously carried 5-0, a temporary 
position for the current General Manager as “General Manager Emeritus” was approved. 
 
In addition, the current Supervising System Operator/Inspector has announced his intention to retire at 
the end of the year. For training purposes, the staff requests that the current position of System 
Operator/Inspector, which is currently vacant, be filled in immediately. There is no action needed on this 
item. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING ASBESTOS MASTIC ABATEMENT AND FLAT ROOF 
REPLACEMENT, AZUSA FLOW CONTROL BUILDING FELT AND FASCIA BOARD 
REPLACEMENT 
 



3 
 
 

Steve Kiggins mentioned that this project was tabled at the May Board meeting. This project removes 
and replaces the flat roof portion of the District’s administration building with a built-up roof and 
replaces the felt and fascia board on the Azusa Flow Control building. Mr. Kiggins is requesting the 
award of this project to La Rocque Better Roofs, Inc. for the total amount not to exceed $139,000.00.  
  
On motion of Director Knoles, seconded by Director Prince, and unanimously carried 5-0, the contract 
in the total amount not to exceed $139,000.00 to La Rocque Better Roof, Inc. was approved. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 
 
External Affairs Report in Agenda Packet 
Evelyn Reyes expressed appreciation to the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster and the City of 
Azusa for their participation in the District’s Staff Legislative Briefing held on April 30, 2025. She 
reported the briefing went well and generated positive feedback from the legislative staff members. 
Additionally, she provided an update on current state legislation being monitored, supported, or 
opposed by the State Water Contractors, as well as an update of legislative items on which the Board 
has taken positions. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
REPORT ON BASIN MANAGEMENT 
 
Director Placido reported the Watermaster will conduct a hearing to determine the Basin’s Operating 
Safe Yield, and that preliminary report recommends no change from last year’s Operating Safe Yield. 
  
REPORT OF WQA 
 
Director Paulson stated the Water Quality Authority discussed apparent lack of Federal funding for the 
Valley, on which the WQA relies for any new projects. 
 
 REPORT OF THE ATTORNEY 
 
No report. 
 
REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER/ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 
 
The General Manager’s written report is in the Agenda Packet. 
The General Manager reported that he received communication from MWD saying they want to start 
discussing the Pure Water Project and the potential use of the District’s pipeline. Mr. Kasamoto asked 
MWD to schedule a kickoff meeting sometime in July, after Jose Reynoso, the new manager, has 
started.  
 
The Assistant General Manager’s written report is in the Agenda Packet. 
Assistant General Manager mentioned the painting project is in progress and is expected to be 
completed by the time the board meets next month and the roofing project will then start as soon as 
possible after that. 



4 
 
 

Mr. Kiggins reported the State Water Project Table A Allocation is currently at 50% as of April 29, 2025, 
with a balance of 11,312 acre-feet of water left for delivery. He also mentioned that construction for the 
Storm Drain Project is being mobilized this week. 
 
REPORT OF THE STATE WATER CONTRACTORS 
 
The General Manager’s written report is in the Agenda Packet. 
The General Manager mentioned that with the increase in State Water Project allocation to 50%, that  
allocation will cover the District’s needs through the end of the year.  
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 
 
None 
 
DIRECTOR REPORTS ON EVENTS ATTENDED  
 
Director Eng congratulated the External Affairs staff who spent time on student leadership and created 
good bonding time with the City staff and the teachers. In addition, he mentioned that doing lots of 
legislation is good, as that opens an opportunity for collaboration.  
 
DIRECTORS COMMENTS  
 
None. 
 
CLOSED SESSION at 8:51 a.m. 
 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant exposure to Litigation 
(Government Code Section 54956.9 subdivision (d)(2)): One potential suit 

  
CLOSED SESSION REPORT (at 9:01 a.m.) 
 
Legal Counsel Ciampa report a closed session was held to discuss an item of anticipated litigation 
under Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and Legal Counsel was directed to consult with the 
District’s insurer, ACWA-JPIA, and follow its direction as to the action on the claim submitted by 
attorney Paul Fitzgerald on behalf of Jesus Fullen. 
 
ADJOURNED at 9:02 a.m. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was duly adjourned at 9:02 a.m. The next Regular Board 
Meeting of the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District’s Board of Directors will be on June 09, 
2025, at 8:00 a.m. 
 

________________  
President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________   
Secretary  





















VISA RECAP
APRIL 21, 2025 - MAY  20, 2025

DATE GL/ACCT NAME OF GL/ACCT DESCRIPTION REFERENCE CHARGED AMT REFERENCE CHARGED AMT REFERENCE CHARGED AMT REFERENCE CHARGED AMT TOTAL 4027 $468.53

4/18/2025 4027 Office Supply Apple.com Icloud $2.99 $2.99 4055 $680.02

4/21/2025 4027 Office Supply Microsoft 365 monthly fee $1.99 $1.99 4403 $159.90

4/21/2025 4403 Hydro Maint. Ewing Rainbird for Hydro $159.90 $159.90 4033 $359.84

4/27/2025 4027 Office Supply Dropbox Annual fee $199.00 $199.00 4095 $160.27

5/1/2025 4033 Public Relations Panera Bread lunch boxes for legislative staff briefing $359.84 $359.84 total $1,828.56

5/1/2025 4027 Office Supply Google Workspace monthly fee $111.44 $111.44  

5/3/2025 4027 Office Supply Intuit QB payroll monthly fee $91.00 $91.00
5/7/2025 4095 Vehicle Maint Union 76 Gas purchased - DK $56.80 $56.80
5/10/2025 4027 Office Supply Apple.com Icloud $2.99 $2.99
5/12/2025 4027 Office Supply Ladys Donut Donut for board mtg $24.15 $24.15
5/13/2025 4055 Staff Hotel Pacific ACWA Spring Conference-SK $314.46 $314.46
5/13/2025 4055 Staff Hotel Pacific ACWA Spring Conference-SK $365.56 $365.56
5/15/2025 4095 Vehicle Maint Cal Truck Equipment Liftmoore for the truck $103.47 $103.47
5/17/2025 4027 Office Supply Zoom Monthly fee $31.98 $31.98
5/18/2025 4027 Office Supply Apple.com Icloud $2.99 $2.99

Total $1,828.56 $1,828.56



AGENDA ACTION ITEM NO. 1 

REPORT ON VACANT JOB POSITIONS – AB 2561  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: No action is required; information only. 

BACKGROUND: This is required by AB 2561 and requires government agencies to 
report on vacant position prior to adoption of their annual budget. The District currently 
has one vacant position which is the System Operator/Inspector. The District is currently 
in the process of filling this position prior to the retirement of the current Supervising 
System Operator/Inspector. 

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: N/A 



 

 

 

{155689/001/00732466-1 }  

MEMORANDUM 
 
 To:  Public Water Agencies Group   
 
 From:  Jim Ciampa 
 

Re: AB 2561 – Report on Vacant Job Positions 
 
 Date:  May 27, 2025 
 
 

AB 2561 was enacted in 2024 and took effect on January 1, 2025. AB 2561 requires a public 
agency each year to assess and address vacancy rates in order to help avoid the negative effects of 
understaffing on the delivery of public services as well as on public employees. The bill declares that 
job vacancies in local government are a widespread and significant problem for public agencies, which 
may undermine labor relations between public agencies and their employees. AB 2561 imposes the 
following new requirements on public agencies: 
 

1. New Public Hearing Obligations Require Public Agencies to Report on Vacancies.  
Under Government Code Section 3502.3, public agencies must now do the following: 
 

a. Track job vacancies at the agency; 
 

b. Present information on the status of the vacancies (such as information on the 
number of posted job openings, candidates interviewed, eligibility lists created, 
conditional offers made, etc.) and the agency’s recruitment and retention efforts. An 
agency must present this information at a public hearing with the agency’s 
governing body at least once per fiscal year (a copy of a Notice of Hearing is 
attached although we believe agendizing the report as a separate agenda item will 
be adequate compliance, especially in this first year). If an agency is adopting its 
budget, the public hearing must occur prior to the governing board’s adoption of 
that budget; and 

 
c. Identify, during the public hearing, any policies, procedures, and recruitment 

activities that may present obstacles in the agency’s hiring process and potential 
changes that may alleviate such obstacles. 

 
These affirmative obligations apply to all public agencies subject to the Meyers-Milias-Brown 

Act, even if the agency does not have any represented employees. Thus, even PWAG members that do 
not organized unions or employee associations must make the report including items a-c, above. If an 



 
 
Public Water Agencies Group  
May 27, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

{155689/001/00732466-1 }  

agency has a represented workforce, AB 2561 entitles a recognized employee organization to make a 
presentation at the public hearing when the agency makes its presentation. AB 2561 does not specify 
details regarding the presentation the employee organization is entitled to make. 
 

2. Additional Obligations May Apply if the Vacancy Rate in a Bargaining Unit Exceeds 
20%. In addition to the requirements described above, if the vacancy rate in a particular bargaining 
unit is at least 20% of the total number of authorized full-time positions, the employee organization 
that represents the bargaining unit may request that the agency present additional information at the 
public hearing. Upon such a request, a public agency must present the following additional 
information: 
 

a. The total number of job vacancies within the bargaining unit; 
 

b. The total number of applicants for vacant positions within the bargaining unit; 
 

c. The average number of days to complete the hiring process from when a position is 
posted; and 

 
d. Opportunities to improve compensation and other working conditions. 

 
3. Implications for Public Agency Communications with Employee Organizations. AB 2561 

is intended to require public reporting on information regarding vacancy rates and to leverage the 
disclosure of such information to increase staffing at public agencies and increase compensation for 
public employees to assist with recruitment and retention efforts. 
 

In terms of meet and confer obligations, AB 2561 does not change the obligations to which 
public agencies are subject. For example, public agencies continue to possess the management right to 
decide which services to offer and the level of funding for such services. Public agencies must continue 
to meet and confer over certain decisions that affect the matters within the scope of representation 
that are implicated by high vacancy rates, such as the decisions to contract out bargaining unit work, to 
remove work from a bargaining unit, and to make material changes to an employee’s workload.  
 

In terms of requests for information, AB 2561 will likely result in an increase in the number of 
requests from employee organizations seeking information regarding vacancies that the employee 
organizations may use in their presentation at the public hearing. Agencies should be proactive and 
prepare for such requests, even before an employee organization makes a request. Agencies should 
also be mindful that employee organizations are entitled to information that is relevant and necessary 
to their representational responsibilities and that the obligation to provide such information extends to 
information beyond that which relates to vacancies. 
 



 
 
Public Water Agencies Group  
May 27, 2025 
Page 3 
 
 

{155689/001/00732466-1 }  

The new law will also affect agency budget planning processes. Agencies should be prepared to 
add the following steps to their budget planning process to account for and address the labor relations 
issues implicated by this new law: 
 

• Review and analyze agency vacancy rates prior to or early on in the budget planning 
process, focusing on vacancy rates by bargaining unit. 
 

• Review recruitment policies, procedures, and activities and prepare to address any 
potential obstacles in the hiring process during the public hearing regarding 
vacancies. The public hearing is an opportunity to highlight successful recruitment 
and retention efforts. 

 
• Consider conducting a staffing study in order to analyze the number of positions 

actually required to provide the public services that the governing body prioritizes. 
 

• Where applicable, present vacancy information by bargaining unit to the relevant 
employee organizations, along with information regarding recruitment and 
retention efforts for that bargaining unit. Agencies may consider presenting such 
information proactively on a regular basis (e.g., January 1 each year) and 
standardizing the information presented to each employee organization in order to 
potentially avoid more expansive requests for information. 

 
• Factor in and schedule the public hearing regarding vacancies into the budget 

preparation process. Agencies may select a single date for the hearing that will 
include the agency’s presentation as well as the presentations for all recognized 
employee organizations. 

 
• Provide advance notice of the hearing to all recognized employee organizations, 

along with notice that they have the right to make presentations at such hearings. 
 

• Because AB 2561 does not regulate employee organization presentations, agencies 
should consider proposing presentation parameters to employee organizations and 
attempt to reach written agreements on the terms of the presentations with each 
employee organization. Such terms may specify the number of presenters, length of 
presentations, subjects to be discussed, and data to be presented. 

 
• In the event that an agency receives direction from its governing board to improve 

compensation or other working conditions for represented employees, the agency 
should be prepared to meet and confer with the relevant employee organizations 
over such changes. 



 
 
Public Water Agencies Group  
May 27, 2025 
Page 4 
 
 

{155689/001/00732466-1 }  

 
• Prepare for employee organizations to make a number of proposals related to 

staffing, such as guaranteed staffing ratios and minimum staffing in order to address 
the employee organization’s concerns about understaffing and workload for existing 
staff. 

 
AB 2561 is another pro-labor bill that adds additional compliance requirements on public 

agencies. 
 



AGENDA ACTION ITEM NO. 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2025-846 – AMENDING CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE AND 
DISCLOSURE CODE TO ADD GENERAL MANAGER EMERITUS POSITION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution No.06-2025-846. 

BACKGROUND: The new General Manager will begin work on July 1, 2025. To provide 
assistance, the outgoing General Manager will remain in the office until September 1 
and will remain on payroll until December 31, 2025. To Avoid having two people in the 
same position, Legal Counsel recommends creation of a new “General Manager 
Emeritus” position and that the conflict-of-Interest Code be amended to add the 
position. 

BUDGET IMPACT: This will create a six month overlap in position which has been 
accounted for in the 2025-2026 Budget. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: Creation of the temporary General Manager Emeritus 
position was approved at the May Board Meeting. 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2025-846 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

APPROVING AMENDED CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE CODE  
OF THE SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et seq., requires 

each state and local government agency to adopt and promulgate a conflict of interest code; 
and 

WHEREAS, as the code reviewing body for the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water 
District (“District”), the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors, establishes regulations 
governing the form of Conflict of Interest Code to be adopted by the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s current General Manager will be retiring effective December 
31, 2025 and will be employed on a temporary basis in a new position as the District’s “General 
Manager Emeritus” from July 1, 2025 through and including December 31, 2025 to assist with 
the transition to the District’s new General Manager; and 

WHEREAS, that new position necessitates an amendment to the District’s Conflict of 
Interest Code to add that position to said code, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of San Gabriel 
Valley Municipal Water District does hereby amend the District’s Conflict of Interest Code to add 
the “General Manager Emeritus” position to Exhibit “B” to said code, and reflect Disclosure 
Categories 1, 2 and 3 for that position; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a secretarial certified copy of this Resolution, 
including the attached amended Conflict of Interest Code of the San Gabriel Valley Municipal 
Water District, shall be forwarded to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors.   

 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 9th day of June, 2025. 
  
 Ayes:       
 Noes:      
 Absent:     
 Abstain:     

                                                 
                                      Steven T. Placido, President 
                                       Board of Directors 
                                                                            San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
Bruce Knoles, Secretary 



  

CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY OF 
SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT   

 
 
 
 I, Bruce Knoles, the undersigned, do hereby certify: 
 
 1. I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water 
District. 
 
 2. The foregoing Resolution Approving Amended Conflict of Interest and Disclosure 
Code of the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District was adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District held on June 9, 2025. 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate as Secretary of the District 
this 9th day of June, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
              
         Secretary 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CATEGORY 1 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all interests in real property within the jurisdiction.  
Real property shall be deemed to be within the jurisdiction if the property or any part of it 
is located within or not more than two miles outside the boundaries of the jurisdiction or 
within two miles of any land owned or used by the agency.   
 
Persons are not required to disclose a residence, such as a home or vacation cabin, 
used exclusively as a personal residence; however, a residence in which a person rents 
out a room or for which a person claims a business deduction may be reportable. 
 
CATEGORY 2 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all investments and business positions.   
 
CATEGORY 3 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all income (including gifts, loans and travel 
payments) and business positions. 
 
CATEGORY 4 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all business positions, investments in, or income 
(including gifts, loans and travel payments) received from business entities that 
manufacture, provide or sell services and/or supplies of a type utilized by the agency 
and associated with the job assignment of designated positions assigned this disclosure 
category. 
 



  

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

  

Designated Positions Disclosure Categories 

Directors 1, 2, 3 

General Manager 1, 2, 3 

General Manager Emeritus 1,  2, 3 

General Legal Counsel 1, 2, 3 

External Affairs Manager   4 

External Affairs Specialist   4 

Consultants/New Positions*     

*Consultants/New Positions are included in the list of designated positions and 
shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code, subject 
to the following limitations: 

The General Manager or his or her designee may determine in writing that a 
particular consultant or new position, although a “designated position,” is hired 
to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to 
fully comply with disclosure requirements in this section. Such written 
determination shall include a description of the consultant’s or new position’s 
duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure 
requirements. The General Manager or his or her designee’s determination is a 
public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner 
and location as this conflict-of-interest code. (Gov. Code Section 81008.) 

Individuals who perform under contract the identical duties of any designated 
position shall be required to file Statements of Economic Interests disclosing 
reportable interests in the categories assigned to that designated position. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 06/09/2025 
 



AGENDA ACTION ITEM NO. 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2025-847 SALARY SCHEDULE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution No. 06-2025-847 Salary Schedule. 

BACKGROUND: At the May Board Meeting, the Board voted to approve a 3% Cost of 
Living Adjustment for all employees. A Salary resolution is required by CalPERS 
anytime there are adjustments made. 

BUDGET IMPACT: A 3% increase will increase the overall Budget by $60,000, which 
has been applied to the 2025-2026 Budget and will be reviewed under agenda item 4. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: The Board acted in May 2025 to approve the 3% increase 
based on the Consumer Price Index. 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 6-2025-847 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

REVISING SALARIES 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN GABRIEL  
VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT as follows: 

 
 Section 1.   Purpose 

 This resolution adopts new salaries. 

 Section 2.   Salaries 

Effective as of June 23, 2025, each of the incumbents of the following offices or 

positions shall be entitled to receive the following salary on a monthly basis unless 

otherwise indicated: 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 Job Title      Salary Steps 

          I            II          III           IV      V           VI        VII         VIII 
 
Supervising System Operator/Inspector  11078   11630   12213  12822  13464   

Sr. System Operator/Inspector      9514     9990 10490  11014  11565 

System Operator/Inspector            6935     7283   7647    8029    8431 

External Affairs Specialist     6799     7140   7496    7871    8264     8539    8825     9118 

External Affairs Manager     9507   10219   10985  11808  12695   12910  13129    13354 

Executive Assistant     9076     9531  10007  10507  11032   11397  11773   12161 

Accounting Specialist     7478     7853    8245    8656    9089     9299    9512     9730 

Assistant General Manager              16008 16810  17649  18531  19458   20431  21452   22525 

General Manager (No Salary Steps)        27305 

General Manager Emeritus   28124 

  
  PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on June 09, 2025. 
 
 
       _______________________ 

      President 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________  
Secretary   



AGENDA ACTION ITEM NO. 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2025-848; 2025-2026 BUDGET AND CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURES 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution No. 06-2025-848; Budget and Capital 
Expenditures. 

BACKGROUND: The draft budget was presented at the May Board Meeting. The draft 
was modified to reflect salary adjustments. We are required by our Administrative Code 
to adopt our annual budget via resolution. 

BUDGET IMPACT: None. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: None. 



RESOLUTION NO. 6-2025-848 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING 2026 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, Section 3-1.101 of the Administrative Code of the San Gabriel 
Valley Municipal Water District (“District”) requires the District to annually adopt a 
budget; and  

WHEREAS, the District’s General Manager has prepared a budget for the 2026 
fiscal year, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and has presented that draft budget 
to the District’s Board of Directors for its consideration; and 

WHEREAS, the budget for the 2026 fiscal year reflects an operating loss of 
$2,278,106 but District management has explained that operating loss results from 
approximately $1,800,000 in grant funding provided to a project that will provide 
significant long-term benefits to the District and that $2,278,106 is offset by “Funds 
Transferred from Reserves” to reduce the operating loss to zero; and    

WHEREAS, the draft budget for the District’s 2026 fiscal year includes property 
tax revenues that are restricted for use to only pay expenses related to the State Water 
Project and the imposition and collection of those property tax revenues are necessary 
to pay those State Water Project expenses because it is infeasible, after consideration 
by the Board of Directors, for the District to further increase the water charges imposed 
on its member cities to cover those significant expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the foregoing determination of infeasibility is made, in part, based 
upon the fact that the District’s member cities have existing water rate structures in 
place and further increases of the District’s water charges will adversely impact the 
cities’ revenue requirements and cost recovery and, therefore, their respective 
compliance with Proposition 218 (Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution); 
and  

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has considered that draft budget 
and has determined that budget accurately sets forth the District’s anticipated revenues 
and expenses for the 2026 fiscal year and that it is in the best interest of the District that 
said budget be approved.  

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT that (1) the Board of 
Directors finds and determines that it is infeasible for the District to further increase the 
water charges imposed on the District’s member cities and that it is necessary for the 



District to levy property taxes as reflected in the budget to be used to cover costs 
related to the State Water Project, which is the District’s only source of water; and (2) 
the District’s 2026 fiscal year budget, in the form presented and attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, which is fully incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby approved, and 
the District’s General Manager is hereby directed to take all necessary actions to file 
that budget with all required state and local agencies and to otherwise implement that 
budget for the upcoming fiscal year.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this June 09, 2025. 
 
 
 
     
            
      President 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Secretary 
 
 



      SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
                  BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

ACCT    UNRESTRICTED REVENUE 2023-2024 2024-2025 PROJECTED 2025-2026
NO.    GENERAL OPERATIONS YEAR END BUDGET YEAR END BUDGET NOTES

3002 Tax Revenue (Gen. 1%) 6,008,628          6,000,000 6,200,000 6,300,000
3003 Water Sales             4,992,324          2,000,000 1,883,000 2,000,000
3004 Interest Revenue                                 886,720             1,000,000 891,725 891,725
3005 Ready-To-Serve 11,880               11,880 11,880 11,880
3006 RDA Prop Tax Trust Fund (AB1x) 822,324             700,000 642,458 700,000
3008 SBVMWD Pipe Mtn Revenue Schedule 6 21,552               30,000 10,272 30,000

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATIONS REVENUE 12,743,428        9,741,880           9,639,335          9,933,605            

POWER REVENUE SALES
3210 Hydro Power Sales 221688.51 50,000 0 90,000

TOTAL POWER REVENUE SALES 221688.51 50000 0 90,000

RESTRICTED REVENUE - SWP
3306 Tax Revenue - State Water Project 10,432,709        10,000,000         10,450,710        10,500,000          

TOTAL RESTRICTED REVENUE - SWP 10,432,709        10,000,000         10,450,710        10,500,000          

3400 Grants-DWR 0 0 0
3401 Grants - State Water Board & Reclamation 0 0 0

TOTAL INCOME 23,176,137        19,791,880         20,090,045        20,523,605          

GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES
4001 Directors Fees 54,400               60,000 51,600 60,000
4010 Administrative Salaries 336,495             327,659 327,660 *642,500 *overlapping GM salary, sick/vacation payout
4014 Field Supervision (Labor) 234,898             233,229 233,457 252,245
4020 Office Salaries 246,658             255,054 *340,762 236,950 *3 mos overlap for acctg. Specialist
4021 External Affairs Manager-Office Salaries 146,491             152,672 154,010 159,937
4022 Part-Time Employee -                     0 0 0
4023 External Affairs Specialist 80,302               83,179 81,886 89,952
4027 Office Supply/Misc Expense 28,828 44,000 33,200 44,000
4029 Election Expense 0 82,000 72,383 0
4031 Legal Services 29,083 50,000 29,200 50,000
4032 SWC Services 45,176               47,000 36,346 47,000  
4033 Public Relations & Conservation Materials 51,749 135,000 85,459 135,000
4034 Governmental Relations Consulting 97,705               98,000 96,491 98,000
4035 Consulting & Engineering 571,992             1,000,000 585,506 *1,000,000 *Corrosion Engineering
4036 Medicare Tax 20,153               20,491 21,590 24,000
4039 PERS Payroll Deductions 623,543             372,142 355,981 436,861

San Gabriel Valley MWD
6/4/2025 1



ACCT Page 2 2023-2024 2024-2025 PROJECTED 2025-2026
NO. ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION YEAR END BUDGET YEAR END BUDGET
4040 Social Security 72,459               75920 77,370 87,528
4041 State Compensation Insurance 17,026               19,000 23,963 26,000
4042 State Unemployment 1,505                 1,748 1,672 1,750
4043 Health Insurance 364,823             384,000 409,390 462,741
4044 Dental & Vision Benefit 87,229               92,000 67,229 90,000
4045 Liability, Cas & Ind Insur. 51,930               55,000 70,710 77,403
4046 Blue X Employee Reimb. 75,287               90,000 78,287 90,000
4048 Life Insurance 4,165                 4,500 4,358 5,040
4050 Dues & Associations 100,522             98,000 102,239 100,000
4051 Travel & Conferences -Directors 16,894               25,000 18,669 25,000
4052 Publications & Periodicals 205                    300 *2,122 300 *notice of inviting bids of publication 
4053 SWC Audit Service 10,290               10,500 10,812 11,000
4054 District Audit Service 26,249 20,000                15,098               20,000                 
4055 Travel & Conferences - Staff 20,047               30,000 23,840 30,000
4057 Tax Annual Fee 61,482               62,000 67,866 68,000
4058 Tax Collection Fees 39,715               40,000 41,318 41,500
4059 Property Taxes 799                    850 810 850
4060 Telephone 38,496               37,000 28,600 30,000
4061 Electricity, Water & Gas 20,972               22,000 23,198 24,000
4063 Safety Program 5303.00 20,000 6,200 20,000
4065 Water Conservation Rebate Program 146,114 295,000 146,256 175,000
4067 OPEB 400,000 780,000 780,000 *780,000 *500k contribution to OPEB trust
4090 SWP Transportation Cost Variable 5,231,131          4,500,000 2,433,406 *2,250,000 *assume 50% allocation in 2026
4093 Uniform Rental-Cleaning 2,845                 4,000 3,626 4,000
4095 Vehicle Maint/Operating Expense 38,660               34,000 41,842 35,000
4096 Communication Expense/Security 9,198                 9,800 8,971 *34,320 *new security and fire system upgrade

4099 Facility Maintenance 41,133               30,000 41,000 48,000
4100 Field Salaries 272,703             323,618 319,950 *390,234 *hiring for system operator/inspector
4108 Grounds Maint & Materials 35,926               58,883 59,112 45,000
4113 Pipeline Maintenance & Materials 87,166               50,000 15,000 *100,000 *air vac improvements
4114 SCADA Maintenance 17,922 10,000 *28,426 20,000
4120 Loans & Grants 212,127             2,000,000 222,000 *5,430,000 *1.8M -Sierra Madre-joint well (grant), 3.4M -Azusa (0%loan)

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED G. O. EXPENSES 10,077,791 12,143,545 7,678,871 13,799,111

San Gabriel Valley MWD
6/4/2025 2



ACCT Page 3 2023-2024 2024-2025 PROJECTED 2025-2026
NO. ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION YEAR END BUDGET YEAR END BUDGET

SCHEDULE VI - RIVERSIDE FACILITY 

4300 Salaries - Riverside 3,402                 6,760 6,183 10,000
4301 Riverside Maintenance & Materials 14,814               6,000 1,248 15,000

TOTAL RIVERSIDE FACILITY 18,217 12,760 7,431 25,000

HYDRO EXPENSES

4402 Hydro Salaries 13,875               15,600 3,075 15,600
4403 Hydro Maintenance & Materials 15,379               25,000 25,000 25,000
4406 SCE Hydro (8800) 8,817                 10,000 4,729 10,000

TOTAL HYDRO EXPENSES 38,071 50,600 32,804 50,600

RESTRICTED EXPENSE - SWP

4510 State Project Expense 8,609,945 8,800,000 8,718,297 *9,500,000 *DCP funding begins Jan 1,2026
4511 State Project Amoritization 96,403               97,000 96,403 97,000
4591 State Project Cost of Water Adjustment Pr Yr 76,206               0 (7,461) 0

TOTAL RESTRICTED SWP EXP 8,782,554 8,897,000 8,807,239 9,597,000

TOTAL EXPENSE 18,916,633 21,103,905 16,526,345 23,471,711

RECAP

TOTAL REVENUE 23,176,137 19,791,880 20,090,045 20,523,605

TOTAL EXPENSE 18,916,633 21,103,905 16,526,345 23,471,711

GAIN (LOSS) 4,259,504 (1,312,025) 3,563,700 (2,948,106)
LOAN REPAYMENT 540,000 670,000

FUNDS TRANSFERED FROM RESERVES 0 0 0 2,278,106
          NET INCOME 4,799,504 0 3,563,700 0

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

San Gabriel Valley MWD
6/4/2025 3



SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
             MAJOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

                    2025-2026 BUDGET

PRELIMINARY
ACC New Carry ITEM & DESCRIPTION COST
No. Over

X Board Room and Kitchen Remodel $50,000.00

X Standby Generator Replacement and Electrical Upgrades: $651,000.00
AFCS, BD, SDH, EM, ETI & RMS Civiltec Engineering Estimate
8/22/24 ($591,825.00 +10%)

X Service Truck Crane Upgrade $23,168.00
 CTEC 4/11/25 Estimate ($21,061.30 +10%) 

   

   

TOTAL $724,168



{155129/000/00329118}  

AGENDA ACTION ITEM NO. 5 

PROPOSAL FROM CIVILTEC ENGINEERING, INC. TO EXTEND CONSTRUCTION 
PHASE SERVICES AND SAN DIMAS GENERATOR REDESIGN FOR GENERATOR 
REPLACEMENT, ELECTRICAL TESTING, AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
UPGRADES AT SIX FACILITIES 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the proposal from Civiltec Engineering, Inc.  

BACKGROUND: Last August, Civiltec Engineering, Inc. was asked to evaluate the vast 
discrepancy between the Generator Project bids and the engineer’s estimate.  Civiltec 
was also asked to evaluate whether the proposed 20kW and 30kW generators were 
suitable for the six facilities.  The lengthy out-of-scope research, meetings, and submittal 
review for the pre-purchase of suitably sized generators and transfer switches have 
reduced the Construction Phase Services balance to ~$4,800.  This proposal replenishes 
construction phase funding and revises plans and drawings to relocate the standby 
generator and fuel tank at the San Dimas facility from the electrical room to a support pad 
outside.          

BUDGET IMPACT: None, there is sufficient funding in the adopted 2024-2025 budget for 
consulting and engineering services. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: Civiltec Proposal No. PU23035 for $79,145.00 was approved 
November 13, 2023 



 
Civil, Water, Wastewater, Drainage, Transportation and  

Electrical/Controls Engineering  ●  Construction Management  ●  Surveying 

California  ●  Arizona 

 

440 North Mountain Avenue, Suite 210, Upland, CA 91786 | P: 909.296.4457 

April 22, 2025 
 
 
 
San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District Sent Via Email: stevekiggins@sgvmwd.com 
1402 N Vosburg Dr 
Azusa, CA 91702 
 
 
ATTN: Steve Kiggins | Assistant General Manager 
 
RE: Proposal for Steve Kiggins 
 Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
 Civiltec Proposal No. PU23035 
 
 
Dear Mr. Kiggins, 
 
Civiltec engineering, inc. (Civiltec) appreciates the opportunity to provide engineering services to 
San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (District) for the above referenced project.  

The District’s project to replace the existing emergency electrics power generators at five of its flow 
and pressure control facilities and one facility previously without a generator has extended well 
beyond initial expectations. The project began in 2023 with a proposal to upgrade the generators 
provided to the District by an electrical contractor with past experience doing business with the 
District. The initial project saw contractor bids that well exceeded estimates and resulted in the 
District rejecting all bids in August of 2024.  

The project was revised to update the generator study report and provide plans and specification 
with greater details to clarify scope to bidders with the intent of reducing construction bids.  The 
project has seen delays resultant from of several unforeseen challenges including multiple gyrations 
of correspondence and teleconferences with potential generator vendors, equipment reviews, and 
vendor proposal cost estimate comparisons and analysis. Additionally, the San Dimas generator 
design is to be revised to have its replacement generator plan changed from matching its existing 
configuration with an interior installation to an exterior installation, similar to the other five project 
sites.  

Budget on the original project has been reduced to $5,613 due to the unforeseen out of scope work 
mentioned and in part due hourly rate increases above those in the original 2023 project.  We submit 
the following proposal to provide project budget to modify the San Dimas plans to an exterior 
generator installation and to supplement the remaining budget in the original project for bidding and 
construction phase services through end of construction.  

 



Steve Kiggins | San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
April 22, 2025 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 
We understand this project is for drawings, specifications, bidding support, and construction 
oversight for the District’s standby generator replacements at 6 pipeline control facilities in southern 
California. The project scope will consist of: 

• Modification of existing or development of 2-3 electrical drawings 
• Modification of existing or development of 1-2 site/civil/structural/demolition engineering 

drawings 
• 1 structural engineering drawing 
• Incorporation of the new/revised drawings into the bid documents 
• Bidding assistance 
• Construction submittals review, progress teleconferences, and inspection services 

AUTHORIZED RESPONSIBLE ENGINEERS 
Civiltec proposes to assign Steven Walker, PE, Senior Project Engineer, as company representative. 
As the Senior Project Engineer, he is responsible for the firm’s timely response and quality 
completion of this project. He has complete authority to handle all contractual matters, commit 
Civiltec’s resources, and take all action necessary to meet your requests. Civiltec will manage this 
project directly from our Upland office. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Based on our project understanding and professional experience, we have identified the following 
scope of services. 

Phase 1. San Dimas Generator Plans Revision/New Drawings and Specifications 

Task 1 – Revise Existing/Develop New Drawings and Specifications 

 Civiltec will modify the existing San Dimas generator plans and provide additional drawings as 
needed to illustrate the design requirements.   

We anticipate drawings to consist of siting a new concrete support pad for the new generator just 
outside the east wall of the existing generator room. New conduit will be routed below grade and into 
the existing building to integrate with the existing electrical system. The concrete pad will extend 6-
inches beyond the new sound enclosure of the generator and raised 4-inches above the existing 
asphalt pavement. The installation will require the contractor to saw-cut the existing asphalt 
pavement for construction the concrete pad and replace the asphalt in-kind.  

The existing generator and appurtenances will be demolished and removed from its building interior 
location. The existing air-intake flume will be demolished, and the wall penetration closed 
(approximately 6 ft x 4.5 ft) with new concrete block, and painted to match interior and exterior 
colors.  

Phase-1 Deliverables: 

• Design Documents 
o Draft and Final Drawings and Specifications 

Phase-1 Meetings 



Steve Kiggins | San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
April 22, 2025 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 

• Draft Design Documents Review Meeting 

Phase 2. Bid Package Development and Bid Phase 
Budget for work completed in Phase-2 will be provided under existing project number 2023331.00 
with no additional funding in this proposal for its scope. Completion of Tasks in Phase-2 will close 
out 2023331.00. 

Task 1 – Development of Bid Ready Design Documents 

Civiltec will package the developed drawings and specifications for use in solicitation of bids from 
electrical contractors.  

Civiltec will prepare the District standard front-end documents with information specific to this 
project for their review and approval. 

An initial draft set of design documents will be provided to the District for review. A video 
teleconference will be held to discuss District comments for addressing/incorporating into the 
finalized design documents. 

Task 2 – Solicitation of Bids and Bid Phase Assistance  

Civiltec will assist the District in identifying reputable local electrical contractors to provide the 
bidding documents for solicitation of proposals. We will assist in answering bidder questions, 
preparing and issuing any addendums required, review received bids, and provide a letter of 
recommendation for selection of the contractor based on meeting required qualifications and best 
price. 

Additionally, Civiltec will attend a mandatory bidders’ pre-bid job walk of the project construction 
sites to assist bidders’ understanding of the scope of work and requirements. 

Task 3 – Bid Phase Progress Meetings 

Civiltec will conduct progress meetings   as needed during the bid phase to coordinate the bidding 
and selection process. 

Phase-2 Deliverables: 

• Design Documents 
o Drawings 
o Specifications 
o Bid tab 

• Bid Solicitation Addenda 
• Reponses to Bidder Questions 
• Letter of Recommendation Bid Acceptance 

Phase-2 Meetings 

• Generator replacement sites (6 sites) 



Steve Kiggins | San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
April 22, 2025 
Page 4 of 8 
 
 

Phase 3. Construction Phase Services 
Civiltec will provide construction phase services as needed throughout project as described in the 
following tasks. 

Task 1 – RFIs, Shop Drawing Reviews, Change Orders. 

Services for this task include reviewing and responding to contractor requests for information (RFI), 
review of contractor shop drawing submittals, and negotiation assistance with the contractor for any 
change orders.  

Task 2 – Construction Progress Meetings 

Civiltec will participate in bi-weekly construction progress meetings with the contractor and District 
as needed. We will provide electrical, structural, and other engineering disciplines for meetings as 
needed and appropriate for the current stage of the construction work.  

Task 3 – Construction Field Representative Services 

A Civiltec field representative will be provided as needed to document the project progress at each 
of the work sites, contractor safety measures, and equipment/materials onsite. 

Because the District is prepurchasing the generators it is expected the actual on-site work will be 
completed in under 6 weeks, spread out over 12 weeks. Budget for the field representative is set to 
1 day per week for 6 weeks, allowing approximately 1.5 hours including travel time, for a total 52 
hours to include visit documentation prepatations. 

Task 4 – Final Startup and Testing 

A Civiltec electrical engineer will perform a site visit to inspect installation and witness functionality. 
The electrical engineer will document the visit and make recommendations for corrections and/or 
modifications to the installed work.  

Task 5 – Project Close Out Records 

Civiltec will compile the contractor’s marked up installation drawings into a record document of the 
project. 

Phase-3 Deliverables: 

• Reviewed Contractor Shop Drawings 
• RFI Responses 
• Change Orders 
• Field Representative Inspection Reports 
• Startup and Testing Witnessing Summary Memorandum 
• Record Drawings  

Phase-3 Meetings 

• Pre-bid meeting at generator replacement sites (6 sites) 
o Civiltec electrical and design engineers in attendance 

• Project construction progress meetings   



Steve Kiggins | San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
April 22, 2025 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 

o Civiltec electrical, structural, and design engineers in attendance as needed 
• Project close-out inspection of work at generator replacement sites (6 sites) 

o Civiltec electrical and design engineers in attendance  

SCHEDULE 
Civiltec is available to commence this project immediately. Based on the scope of work described 
previously, we can complete the Phases and Task according Attachment B.  

FEE DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE 
Professional fees for the above-described services in Phase 1 are estimated to be provided with the 
following breakdown and will be provided on a fixed fee basis as is most convenient for the District. 
A breakdown of Phase 1 hours and fees is included as Attachment A 

Phase 1. San Dimas Generator Plans Revision/New Drawings and Specifications………..$8,530.00 
 

Phase 2. Bid Package Development and Bid Phase…………………………………………..……$0.00 
. 
Phase 3. Construction Phase Services…………………….………………………………………..………$23,285.00 

 

Our total fee for Phase 1, Phase 2, and Phase 3 in this proposal scope of work is summarized below: 

Proposal Total ....................................................................................................... $31,815.00 
 

Any work not authorized within 3 months of the date of this proposal will be subject to renegotiations 
based on current rates. Capacity and impact fees associated with application filings shall be the 
responsibility of the District. Additional services may be authorized by the District based on Civiltec’s 
Hourly Rate Schedule. Civiltec will bill monthly for all work performed and expenses incurred on the 
project’s behalf. 

If this proposal is acceptable, please return a signed copy to our office. Again, thank you for the 
opportunity to submit this proposal. We look forward to working with you on this project. Please 
contact the undersigned directly with any comments or questions. 

Sincerely, 
 
Civiltec engineering, inc. 
 

 
 
Steven Walker, PE (swalker@civiltec.com)  
Senior Engineer 
 
SMW:dgs 

mailto:swalker@civiltec.com


Steve Kiggins | San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services 
April 22, 2025 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 
 
Attachment(s): A – Breakdown of Hours and Fees  
 B – Conceptual Project Schedule 
 
Proposal Acceptance: 
The Terms and Conditions of this proposal are: 
 

Accepted this  day of  2025. 
 
By Authorized District Representative: 
 

   
Name and Title  Date 

 

 
W:\Proposals\2023 Proposals\Upland\PU23035.00-District-Generator Replacemnt Constr Supp\Proposal\Final\PU23035.00-District-
Generator Replacemnt Constr Supp Rev 02.docx



 

 

 
 
 

Attachment A 
Breakdown of Hours and Fees 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Project Name: SGVMWD Generator San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services

Client: San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Proposal Number: PU25XXX

FF

Date: April 22, 2025 Shem Sw Heber Vinc

PIC SrE PrEE SrSE D/CAD CAD JrE CO

290.00$   275.00$   250.00$   195.00$   150.00$   135.00$   95.00$      165.00$   

Phase 1 - San Dimas Generator Plans Revision/New Drawings and Specifications 1 6 12 2 2 6 22 0 -$          8,530$                      

Task 1 - Revise Existing/Develop New Drawings and Specifications 1 6 12 2 2 6 22 0 -$          8,530$                      

Phase 2 - Bid Package Development and Bid Phase 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$          -$                          

Task 1 - Development of Bid Ready Design Documents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                           

Task 2 - Solicitation of Bids and Bid Phase Assistance	 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                           

Task 3 - Bid Phase Progress Meetings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                           

Phase 3 - Construction Phase Services 0 13 26 0 0 4 32 52 1,050$      23,285$                    

Task 1 - RFIs, Shop Drawing Reviews, Change Orders. 0 4 8 0 0 0 18 0 0 4,810$                      

Task 2 - Construction Progress Meetings (each 2 weeks for 12 weeks) 0 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,150$                      

Task 3 - Construction Field Representative Services (1 visit/week/site for 6 weeks) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 300 8,880$                      

Task 4 - Final Startup and Testing 0 2 10 0 0 0 10 0 750 4,750$                      

Task 5 - Project Close Out Records 0 1 2 0 0 4 4 0 0 1,695$                      

HOURS 1 19 38 2 2 10 54 52 178

BUDGET 290$         5,225$      9,500$      390$         300$         1,350$      5,130$      8,580$      1,050$      31,815$                    

TOTAL 

COST
Scope of Work

HOURS

 Reimb. 

Expenses 

PIC = Principal Engineer (PE) SrE = Senior Engineer (PE) SrPM = Sr. Project Manager
PrEE = Principal Electrical Engr. (PE) PM = Project Manager SrPE = Sr. Project Engineer (PE)
PE = Project Engineer (PE) SrD = Senior Designer SrSE = Sr. Staff Engineer (EIT)
SE = Staff Engineer (EIT) D = Designer D/CAD = Designer/CAD Operator
CAD = CAD Operator JrE = Jr. Engineer (Intern) PT = Planning Technician
Admin = Admin. Asst./Clerical CO = Construction Observer SM = Survey Manager (PLS)
2PS = Two Person Survey Crew SLS = Staff Land Surveyor (PLS) ST = Survey Technician

PREPARED BY: CIVILTEC ENGINEERING, INC. PAGE 1 OF 1



 

Page 8 of 2 

 
Attachment B 

Conceptual Project Schedule 
 
 
 



ID Task 

Mode

Task Name Start Finish Predecessors Duration

1

2

3 Final Preorder Submittals Approved Tue 4/22/25 Tue 4/29/25 6 days

4 Purchase Order Issued Tue 4/29/25 Tue 4/29/25 3 0 days

5 Generators Procurement Period Wed 4/30/25Tue 10/14/254 24 wks

6 Generators Delivered Tue 10/14/25Tue 10/14/255 0 days

7 Draft San Dimas Plans Submittal to SGVMWD Fri 5/30/25 Fri 5/30/25 0 days

8 Final San Dimas Plans Ready Thu 6/5/25 Thu 6/5/25 7FS+5 days 0 days

9 Prepare Bid Package Thu 6/26/25 Thu 6/26/25 8FS+15 days 0 days

10 Bid Package Ready Mon 7/14/25Mon 7/14/259FS+12 days 0 days

11 Provide Potential Bidders Plans/Specs Wed 7/30/25Wed 7/30/256FS-11 wks 0 days

12 Bidders Proposal Preparation Period Wed 7/30/25Tue 8/26/25 11 4 wks

13 Bid Propsosals Received Tue 8/26/25 Tue 8/26/25 12 0 days

14 Letter of Recommendation For Award Tue 9/2/25 Tue 9/2/25 13FS+1 wk 0 days

15 SGVMWD Board Approval of Award Mon 9/8/25 Mon 9/8/25 0 days

16 Contractor On Boarding Mon 9/8/25 Wed 9/17/2515 8 days

17 Contractor Submittals Period Thu 9/18/25 Wed 9/24/2516 5 days

18 Contractor Commences w/Field Work/Demolition Wed 9/17/25Wed 9/17/2516 0 days

19 Concrete Pouring and Below Grade Conduits Tue 10/7/25 Mon 11/3/2517FS+8 days 4 wks

20 Power Utility Services Install Thu 9/18/25 Fri 10/3/25 18 12 days

21 Set Generators Mon 12/1/25Mon 12/1/2519FS+4 wks 0 days

22 Wiring and Equipment Tue 12/16/25Tue 12/16/2521FS+10 days 1 day

23 Startup and Testing Wed 12/17/25Thu 12/18/2522 2 days

24 Project Complete Thu 12/18/25Thu 12/18/2523 0 days

4/29

10/14

5/30

6/5

6/26

7/14

7/30

8/26

9/2

9/8

9/17

12/1

12/18

M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W

Apr 20, '25 Apr 27, '25 May 4, '25 May 11, '25 May 18, '25 May 25, '25 Jun 1, '25 Jun 8, '25 Jun 15, '25 Jun 22, '25 Jun 29, '25 Jul 6, '25 Jul 13, '25 Jul 20, '25 Jul 27, '25 Aug 3, '25 Aug 10, '25 Aug 17, '25 Aug 24, '25 Aug 31, '25 Sep 7, '25 Sep 14, '25 Sep 21, '25 Sep 28, '25 Oct 5, '25 Oct 12, '25 Oct 19, '25 Oct 26, '25 Nov 2, '25 Nov 9, '25 Nov 16, '25 Nov 23, '25 Nov 30, '25 Dec 7, '25 Dec 14, '25 Dec 21, '25

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: SWGVMWD Generator

Date: Tue 4/22/25

swalker
Text Box
SGVMWD Generator Project San Dimas Redesign and Extended Construction Phase Services
Project Schedule

swalker
Text Box
GENERATORS DELIVERED

swalker
Text Box
BID PERIOD

swalker
Text Box
CONTRACT AWARD

swalker
Text Box
PROJECT COMPLETE

swalker
Text Box
Attachment B

swalker
Image

































May 29, 2025 
 
 
 
 Page 1 
 

Memorandum 
To:  San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District Board of Directors 
 
From: Darin Kasamoto General Manager 
 
Date May 29, 2025 
Subject: General Manager’s Report 
 
 
1. SWP UPDATE 
 
On May 23, a letter was sent to the governor supporting the DCP Streamlining Trailer Bill, this 
District along with a large coalition of agencies signed on to the bill (a copy of the letter is attached). 
State Water Contractors has sent out an advocacy package for individual contractors to lobby their 
state legislative delegation 
 
The State Water Project allocation for 2025 increased to 50% from 40% on April 29, 2025.  
 
 
2. MAIN SAN GABRIEL BASIN UPDATE 
 
As of May 23, 2025, the Key Well is at 245.1 feet, up 0.8 feet from May 2, 2025 due to imported 
water deliveries. The historic low is 169.4 feet. 
 
3. GRANT PROGRAM UPDATES 
 
No update at this time. 
 
4. MANAGEMENT ISSUES  
 
The Letter of Intent for the Regional Recycled Water Project has been approved by all parties. I have 
had a follow-up with MWD on next steps, and they want to look into use of SGVMWD existing 
infrastructure to add flexibility to the project. We have sent all of information requested by MWD for 
them to begin this analysis. The preliminary analysis performed by MWD indicates that it is 
physically possible to use our pipeline to get water to the treatment plant in La Verne. Stetson 
Engineers has prepared a white paper on pros and cons of allowing use of district facilities. MWD 
provided an update on the project at the August Board Meeting and indicates they will not be ready 
to discuss use of District pipeline and potential District capital funding until summer of 2025. 
 
Staff has approved a proposal from Corpro Corrosion Engineering to begin analysis on pipeline 
schedules that they deemed to be of the highest priorities. 
 
The District has provided a non-binding letter of interest in the proposed Willow Springs Water 
Banking Project. This could potentially be used to bank SWP allocation which can not be delivered 
due to aqueduct restrictions. More information will be presented once it becomes available. 
 
Staff has reviewed a draft term sheet for the potential purchase of MWD 2025 SWP Table A 
allocation, MWD Board has approved the term sheet. The District is now able to purchase 
supplemental water from MWD if necessary. MWD has modified the original term sheet and the new 



May 29, 2025 
 
 
 
 Page 2 
 

terms make it infeasible for this District to participate this year due to the cost being increased from 
$500 to $700 per ac-ft. MWD staff indicates that our proposal for 5000 ac-ft for $500/ac-ft will be 
presented to upper management for consideration. 
 
 





























 Page 1 
 

Memorandum 
To:  San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District Board of Directors 
 
From:  Steve Kiggins, Assistant General Manager  
 
Cc:  Darin Kasamoto, General Manager  
 
Date:  June 5, 2025 
 
Subject:  Assistant General Manager’s Report 
 
 
 
1. May 2025 deliveries:  1,058 AF to SGVMWD cyclic storage and 557 AF to Covina Irrigating 

Company for Three Valleys Municipal Water District.  Table A Allocation CY 2025:  50% / 14,400 
AF.  Table A balance:  10,254 AF.  

 
2. Deliveries to cyclic storage CY 2025:  5,741 AF.  Cyclic storage balance as of April 30, 2025:  

6,317.38 AF.  The amount of water banked for Dudley Ridge Water District is 14,209 AF.  On April 
15th, Dudley Ridge requested the return of 4,000 AF of banked water from SGVMWD’s 2025 Table 
A allocation.  

 
3. Water delivery forecast:  No deliveries are anticipated this month due to a six-week safety pipeline 

shutdown for storm drain construction on Leadora Avenue.                                               
 
5.  Assistant General Manager meetings and activities: 

 
A. Attended ACWA Spring Conference 

 
B. Painting Project daily site visits  
 
C. San Dimas Paving Project daily site visits 
 
D. Operations field support for SCH. I isolation and construction zone dewatering 
 
E. Leadora storm drain construction daily site visits  
 
F. Attended Basin Water Management Committee meeting 
 
G. Attended Golden Mussel Control Plan meeting with USGVMWD/TVMWD   
 
H. Attended Groundwater Replenishment Coordinating Group meeting (Teams)   

 
I. Attended the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster meeting 

 
J. Weekly DWR / SWC Operations Update meetings (Teams) 


	PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
	Visa Recap 042125-052025.pdf
	Sheet1

	Agenda Item 3(Attachment) Resolution No. 06-2025-847 Salary Schedule.pdf
	REVISING SALARIES

	Agenda Item 4 (attachment 2) 2025 2026 Budget..pdf
	A

	may2025management report -DK.pdf
	Memorandum

	2025-06 AGM Report.pdf
	Memorandum

	Agenda 06 09 25 (Ciampa rev).pdf
	ACTION ITEMS

	2025-06-04 FORMCAEX 2025-2026 - Updated.pdf
	A

	Agenda 06 09 25 (Ciampa rev).pdf
	ACTION ITEMS


